
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

DECEMBER 19, 2023 
9:00 A.M. 

5080 ANNUNCIATION CIRCLE, SUITE 101, AVE MARIA, FLORIDA 34142 
www.avemariastewardshipcd.org 

DISTRICT MANAGER 
Special District Services, Inc. 

The Oaks Center 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile



AGENDA 
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
December 19, 2023 

9:00 a.m. 
Ave Maria Master Association (office/fitness center) 

5080 Annunciation Circle, Unit 101 
Ave Maria, Florida 34142 

TO JOIN VIA ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84779450200 
MEETING ID: 847 7945 0200 DIAL IN AT: 1-929-436-2866 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Invocation 

D. Proof of Publication ……………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

E. Establish a Quorum 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

G. Comments from the Public for District Items on the Agenda 

H. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 7, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes ………………………….....Page 2 
2. December 13, 2023 Evaluation Committee Meeting………………………………………………...Page 11 

I. Consent Agenda 

1. Consider Approval of CenturyLink Lumen Anthem Parkway Phase 5 Proposal…………………....Page 12 

J. Old Business 

1. AMSCD Projects Update………………………………………………………………………….....Page 13 

K. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Current Rates Mosquito Services………………………………………….....Page 16 

2. Presentation of Evaluation Committee’s Recommendation on Prequalified Contractor Applicants..Page 18 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-29 – Adopting Prequalified Contractors List……………………….Page 20 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2023-30 – Awarding Contract for Earthwork & Paving, Sanitary 
Sewer, Irrigation for Massa Way Irrigation Extension………………………………………………Page 22  

5. Consider Resolution No. 2023-31 – Adopting a Vehicle Use Policy………………………………..Page 24 

6. Consider Resolution No. 2023-32 – Awarding Construction Contract for Ave Maria Blvd. 
and Oil Well Road Lighting.…………………………………………………………………………Page 30 

7. Consider Resolution No. 2023-33 – Approving the Use of District Issued Debit Card……………..Page 33 

8. Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Easement Agreement……………………………...Page 38 

9. Consider Approval of First Amendment to Cost Share Agreement between the District and 
Ave Maria Utility Company LLLP for Consulting Services………………………………………...Page 46 

L. Administrative Matters 

1. Legal Report 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Manager’s Report 
a. Financials…………………………………………………………………..……..................Page 70 

M. Final Public Comments 

N. Board Members Comments 

O. Adjourn 
*Public Comment will be limited to three minutes (3:00) with no rebuttal 



Publication Date
2023-11-27

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF DATE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING
The Board of Supervisors (the Board) of the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (the District) will hold
a Regular Board Meeting (Meeting) at 9:00 a.m. on December 19, 2023, in the Ave Maria Master Association
located at 5080 Annunciation Circle, Unit 101, Ave Maria, Florida 34142, instead of December 5, 2023, as
previously advertised.
The Meeting will be also be available for viewing utilizing communications media technology (Virtual
Attendance) through the following login information, however public comment will only be available to those
participating in person. Virtual Attendance is offered for convenience only and in the event there are
interruptions in internet service or other technical di�culties the Meeting will continue at the physical location
regardless of availability of the Virtual Attendance option.
Join by URL for VIDEO ACCESS at: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84779450200
Meeting ID: 847 7945 0200
Join by PHONE at: 1-929-436-2866
Meeting ID: 847 7945 0200
The purpose of the Meeting is for the Board to address District related items as noted on the Agenda. At such
time the Board is so authorized and may consider any business that may properly come before it.
A copy of the agenda may be obtained at the o�ces of the District Manager, Special District Services, Inc.,
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (561) 630-4922, during normal business hours, or by
visiting the Districts website at www.avemariastewardshipcd.org seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.
The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. The
meeting may be continued to a date, time and place to be speci�ed on the record at the meeting. There may
be occasions when Board Supervisors or District Staff may participate by speaker telephone or other
communications media technology.
Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment
should contact the District Managers O�ce at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. If you are
hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771
(TTY)/1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Managers o�ce.
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at
the meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person may
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon
which such appeal is to be based.
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT
www.avemariastewarshipcd.org
November 27, 2023 9548497

Page 1



Page 1 of 6 

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
Ave Maria Master Association 

5080 Annunciation Circle, Unit 101  
Ave Maria, Florida 34142 

or 
TO JOIN VIA ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84779450200 

MEETING ID: 831 9805 1068  DIAL IN AT: 1 929 436 2866 
November 7, 2023 

A. CALL TO ORDER

The November 7, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Ave Maria Master Association located at 5080 
Annunciation Circle, Unit 101, Ave Maria, Florida 34142.  The meeting was also available via the 
Zoom information indicated above.  

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

C. INVOCATION

Mr. Klucik led the meeting in prayer. 

D. PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Naples Daily News on September 25, 2023, as legally required. 

E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

A quorum was established with the following: 

Board of Supervisors 
Chairman Thomas Peek Present 
Vice Chair Jay Roth Present 
Supervisor Jeff Sonalia Present 
Supervisor Tom DiFlorio Present 
Supervisor Robb Klucik Present 

District Staff in attendance were:  

District Manager Andrew Karmeris Special District Services, Inc. 

Director of Operations Sal D’Angelo Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel Alyssa Willson Kutak Rock, LLP 

Page 2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84779450200


Page 2 of 6 

District Engineer Ted Tryka Agnoli Barber & Brundage, 
Inc. 

Also present were the following: 

Kim Twiss, Donnie Diaz, and several members of the public. 

There were also many others present via Zoom. 

F. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA

Staff presented a Drainage Easement Agreement for the Phase 5A project be added to the agenda as 
New Business item #1.  

A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously adopting the 
agenda. 

G. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Chairman Peek informed the Board, staff and members of the public that the meetings would be a 
little more formal than they have been in the past.  He stated that there would be two public comment 
sections on the agenda, one at the beginning of the meeting and one at the end of the meeting.   

District resident John Lanham commented that he believes regulations are exceeding the Ave Maria 
Stewardship Community District’s mandate in regard to insurance requirements for special events.  
Mr. D’Angelo added that he is working with legal on the forms needed for special use permit events. 
Mr. Klucik asked if everyone holding events is being treated the same way and added that he believes 
it is important to have the district’s liability covered when events use district land.  Ms. Willson stated 
that special use permit forms are being updated and will be uniform for everyone attempting to acquire 
a special use permit for an event.   Mr. Lanham added that he does not believe the district’s rules are 
industry standard or what Collier County is doing.  He stated he has a problem with the liability 
waivers.  

District resident Paula Csantaverin asked if cell towers were being built in Ave Maria? Mr. DiFlorio 
stated that he believed there was one by the softball field.  

Arlen Smith asked if the district or developer had considered a place for commercial vehicles to park 
or if there were plans?  Ms. Twiss stated that the developer had designated a place at the tennis courts 
and applications for parking permits are available in the master association offices.  

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. October 3, 2023, Regular Board Meeting

The minutes of the October 3, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration.  

A motion was made by Mr. DiFlorio, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the October 3, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 

Page 3



Page 3 of 6 

I. DISCUSSION REGARDING PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES

A lengthy discussion ensued as the Board reviewed the district’s public comment policy which was 
adopted via resolution No. 2013-08.  Mr. Klucik asked staff to check if a more recent policy had been 
adopted.  He then stated he agreed the public comment dialogue during meetings had become a little 
loose but believes public input on agenda items is important and needed.  Mr. Klucik then said he 
would like to have a public comment section after each agenda item with a limit of three (3) minutes 
enforced. Chairman Peek suggested the Board follow this meeting’s structure and the adopted 
resolution for a few future meetings before re-evaluating the public comment procedures.  The Board 
agreed and will re-evaluate the public comment procedures at a future meeting.  

At 6:39 p.m. the regular board meeting was recessed and the public hearing on proposed construction 
prequalification criteria and procedures was opened.  

J. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Proof of Publication Naples Daily News on 10/17/2023

2. Receive Public Comments and Objections on the Adoption of the District’s Proposed
Construction Prequalification Criteria and Procedures

There were no comments from the public. 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-24 – Adopting Proposed Construction Prequalification
Criteria and Procedures

Mr. Tryka presented.  Mr. Klucik requested the RFQ be posted on social media and the district’s 
website.   

A motion was made by Mr. Klucik, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously approving 
Resolution No. 2023-24 – Adopting Proposed Construction Prequalification Criteria and Procedures 
adjusting the opening date to November 10, 2023 and the due date to December 11, 2023 and 
appointing David Genson, Sal D’Angelo and Ted Tryka as the evaluation committee. 

At 6:49 p.m. the public hearing was closed and the regular board meeting reconvened. 

K. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider Approval of Anthem Parkway Phase 5A Proposals

2. Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Easement

A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously approving 
consent agenda.  

L. OLD BUSINESS

1. AMSCD Projects Update

Page 4



Page 4 of 6 

Staff reviewed the list.  Dan Hartley stated that contracts for Anthem Parkway Phase 5A are being 
finalized.  

Mr. Klucik asked staff to review the landscape contract regarding veteran’s memorial plaza. 

Mr. D’Angelo gave an update on towing company search and informed the board that he meets 
weekly with asset management consultant.  

M. NEW BUSINESS

1. Consider Approval of Drainage Easement Agreement between Ave Maria Master
Association, Inc and Ave Maria Stewardship Community District

Ms. Willson presented. 

A motion was made by Mr. Klucik, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously approving 
Drainage Easement Agreement between Ave Maria Master Association, Inc and Ave Maria 
Stewardship Community District, as presented.  

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-25 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget

Mr. Karmeris presented and explained the purpose of the amended budget.  

A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-25 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget, as presented.  

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-26 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget
for Master Irrigation Utility System

Mr. Karmeris presented. 

A motion was made by Mr. DiFlorio, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-26 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget for Master Irrigation 
Utility System, as presented.  

4. Consider Resolution No. 2023-27 – Adopting Amended Construction Protocols

Ms. Willson presented and fielded questions from the Board.  

A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-27 – Adopting Amended Construction Protocols, as presented.  

5. Consider Selection and Approval of a Reserve Study Proposals

Mr. D’Angelo presented and explained his rationale for recommending Reserve Advisors LLC.  The 
Board discussed the proposals with Mr. D’Angelo and accepted his recommendation.    

Page 5



Page 5 of 6 

A motion was made by Mr. Klucik, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously selecting Reserve 
Advisors LLC reserve study proposal subject to developer funding approval and legal contract 
preparation.   

6. Consider Resolution No. 2023-28 – Adopting A Revised Lake Fishing Policy

Mr. D’Angelo presented, and a discussion ensued regarding the map of lakes.  Mr. Klucik suggested 
a change to Section 2.c. to the following sentence: The general public may only fish in District lake 
#TN1A and #UN1A.  When fishing in those lakes, they may only fish from the public access points. 

A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-28 – Adopting A Revised Lake Fishing Policy, as amended with Mr. Klucik’s 
suggested revision.  

7. Discussion Regarding Food Truck Requests

Mr. D’Angelo informed the board that a request for a food truck on district roads was received and 
denied.  Mr. Klucik added that there is a mechanism through the private property owner to do food 
trucks and does not believe the district has food truck events on its roads.  

8. Discussion Regarding Memorandum on Gate Items

Ms. Willson presented her memo provided in the agenda packet.  A lengthy discussion ensued 
regarding county permits, the issuing process, and the process of revoking permits. Ms. Willson added 
that she did not research the county’s revoking process.  

N. AUDITOR SELECTION COMMITTEE

1. Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor

Mr. Karmeris presented staff’s recommendation in the agenda packet.  The Audit committee adopted 
staff’s rankings and recommended Grau & Associates to the board of supervisors.  

 A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously selecting Grau 
& Associates as Auditor. 

O. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Legal Report

Ms. Willson stated that she was looking into the gate at Maple Ridge model homes. 

2. Engineer’s Report

Mr. Tryka had nothing further to report. 

3. Manager’s Report

Page 6



Page 6 of 6 

a. Request for District Credit Card for Operations

The Board asked that a policy be brought back at the next meeting. 

b. Financials
Mr. Karmeris went over the financials provided in the agenda packet. 

P. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS

District Resident John Strysik commented about gates being on district property and asked how the 
IRS is involved with issuing district bonds.  

District Resident Ronny Lambotte asked if the county could review the permit for the National Gate. 
Ms. Willson stated the gates were constructed in accordance with county approved site plans.  

Q. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Mr. Klucik repeated that he liked having the public comment section under each agenda item.  

Mr. Roth added that he and the board appreciate public input and welcomes it in the proper format. 

R. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 8:33 p.m. by Chairman Peek.  There were no objections. 

________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice-Chairman 

Page 7



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

NOVEMBER 2023 
Project Name Date 

appeared 
on List 

Start 
Date 

End 
Date 

Est. Cost % 
Complete 

Responsible 
Party 

Comments 

Anthem Parkway 
Phase 5A (Starts 
at North park to 
Avalon) 

06/07/2022 2nd 
Quarter 

2023 

TBD Costs being 
reviewed 

0% Andrew Karmeris 
(District) 

Permits expected in 
Sept/Oct 2023. Ready 

to commence 
immediately upon 
permit approval.  

Anthem Parkway 
Phase 5B (Will 
include 
roundabout at 
Pope John Paul) 

06/07/2022 3rd 
Quarter 

2023 

TBD Costs being 
reviewed 

0% Andrew Karmeris 
(District) 

Environmental permits 
expected June 2024 

Apron at Owens 
roundabout & vet 
handicap parking 
spot 

06/06/2023 May 
2023 

Design 
Plans 

11/30/23 

TBD 0% Ted Tryka 
 (District) 

Plan and permitting to 
be completed by the 

end of the year.  

Additional 
Landscaping on 
Milano 

07/11/2023 August 
2023 

Oct 
2023 

Expected to 
have pricing 

by end 
October 

0% David Genson 
(AMD) 

AMD is working on 
pricing and expected.  

Page 8



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
Parking on 
District Roads 

09/13/2022 01/2023 2nd 
Quarter 

2023 

N/A N/A Andrew Karmeris 
(District Manager) 

Kim Twiss (Master 
Association 
Manager) 

Signs have been 
delivered and 

approximately 90% 
have been installed.   

Town Core 
Striping and 
Flashing Signs 

09/13/2022 01/2023 9/15/23 $188,000 98% Ted Tryka 
(District) 

2 Parking Spots 
Remain.  Construction 
Equipment signs have 
been ordered to block 

off spots.  
Asset 
Management 
(Placeholder for 
FY24) 

11/01/2022 March 
2023 

June 
2023 

$50,000 FY 23 –  
100% 

Sal DeAngelo 
(District) 

Mapping of roadways, 
sidewalks, curbs, light 

poles are complete.  
Budgeting for Fiscal 
Year 2024 to include 
site visits, mapping of 
additional assets such 
as signs, fixtures, etc. 

Reserve Funds 
(Irrigation and 
O&M) 

11/01/2022 TBD N/A TBD TBD David Genson 
(AMD) 

Rate Adjustment 
presentation expected 
at Fall 2023 meeting. 

Front Fountain 
(Letters) 

04/04/2023 N/A Oct 
2023 

$22,000 80% Donny Diaz  Fountain is operational.  
Letters contract was 
approved expected to 
start in August 2023.  

Page 9



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
National Gate 
monitoring 

05/02/2023 2023 Ongoing N/A N/A Alyssa Willson 
(District) 

The District continues 
to monitor National 

Gate operation.  
Residents have been 

instructed to file 
complaints filed with 

District Manager.  
Sign at Oil Well 
Road/ Lighting 
Project 

10/03/2023 Spring 
2024 

TBD $430,000 0% Ted Tryka 
(District 

Proposals to be 
requested from 

prequalified 
contractors.  

Page 10



Contractor Prequalifica on Public Mee ng 

Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 2:00 PM 

5080 Annuncia on Circle, Unit #101 

Ave Maria, FL. 34142 

 

Contractor’s Prequalifica on Statement (Construc on of Public Infrastructure 

Improvements and Maintenance Services).  

 

In a endance: Sal D’Angelo, Dave Genson, and Ted Tryka 

No public or contractors in a endance.  

 

The evalua on commi ee reviewed and discussed the six (6) submi ed proposals based on the 

No ce to Prospec ve Bidders and Request for Qualifica ons. The following firms submi ed 

proposals: 

 American Infrastructure Services (AIS) 

 Haleakala Construc on, Inc. 

 Jensen Underground U li es, Inc. 

 Mitchell and Stark Construc on  

 O’Donnell Landscaping 

 Woods and Wetlands, Inc.  

 

It was concluded that all firms submi ed the proper paperwork and were qualified to perform 

said work in their respec ve categories. Ted Tryka, District Engineer, is going to complete a 

memorandum for Board review and approval.  

 

Sal D’Angelo III 

Director of Opera ons/ SDS/AMSCD 

Page 11



Job Authorization No: P184014
Contract No: No

EQ Florida-SouthSpecial Construction Proposal CTL Affiliate:

Customer shall indicate its acceptance of this Proposal by signing where indicated below. The date of Customer's signature shall be the effective date of this Proposal (the “Effective 
Date”). Upon such acceptance by Customer, this Proposal and the terms and conditions of any applicable Tariffs shall constitute a binding agreement. 

For the Work performed hereunder, Customer will be responsible for the actual charges incurred by the Lumen affiliate performing the Work (“Provider”).  The estimated charges 
above shall be paid prior to commencement of the Work (“Advance Payment”).  Amounts due from Customer in excess of the Advance Payment shall be paid by Customer within 
thirty (30) days of invoice, or such longer time, if any, as set forth on such invoice.  Refunds due Customer, if any, shall be refunded if and as required by applicable Tariffs.  All past 
due, undisputed amounts due from Customer to Provider will be assessed a late fee at 14% APR.  Where applicable, Customer shall also be responsible for foreign, federal, state 
and local taxes assessed in connection with the Work, including without limitation, all use, sales, value added, surcharges, excise, franchises, commercial, gross receipts, license, 
privilege or other similar charges, whether charged to or against Provider or Customer, but excluding any taxes based on Provider’s net income. 

For Governmental Customers only, no Advance Payment is due. Lumen will submit an invoice of charges upon completion of the Work, payable within forty-five (45) days of 
receipt.  Past due undisputed amounts will be assessed a late fee in accordance with applicable laws.  

The Work in this Proposal is separate from any work that may be performed pursuant to any other order or agreement, including but not limited to a Pre-Service Request for cell site 
provisioning. 

This Proposal shall be deemed withdrawn by Provider if not accepted by Customer within thirty (30) days of the date of this Proposal.  Except for Proposals signed by Governmental 
Customers, if Provider has not received the Advance Payment within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date, this Proposal will automatically expire without further action by either 
party. 

Forty-Four Thousand Seventy Dollars and 40/100

Daniel C. Hartley, P.E.
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNIT

2501A BURNS ROAD

ANTHEM PKW NE_AVE MARIA
County    COLLIER
NAPLES,  FL

Billing Address: Work Location:
Date: 11/8/2023

This Proposal is governed by the terms and conditions set forth herein as well as any applicable state or federal tariffs filed 
with the appropriate state or federal regulators.  Description and/or specifications of work to be performed by an operating 
affiliate of CenturyLink Inc.  (“CenturyLink”) under this Proposal ("Work") is as follows:

Customer 
Authorized Signature:
Name Printed/Typed:
Title:
Date:

Customer:
Attention:

PALM BEACH GARDENS,  FL   33410

Total Charges:

ATC Project proposes to relocate an estimated 5000 feet of 24 fiber cable onto a customer placed new 
temporary aerial cable route, when new 24 fiber is placed and cutover to new cable. Then proceed with 
removing existing aerial 24 fiber cable with one not in service aerial 25 pair copper cable lashed together. 

$44,070.40Advance Payment (required before work begins):

Version: 3-15-2023Page 1LumenProposal 
Page 12



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

DECEMBER 2023 
Project Name Date 

appeared 

on List 

Start 

Date 

End 

Date 

Est. 

Cost 

% 

Complete 

Responsible 

Party 

Comments 

Anthem Parkway 

Phase 5A (Starts 

at North park to 

Avalon) 

06/07/2022 2nd 

Quarter 

2023 

December 

2024 

Costs being 

reviewed 

0% Andrew Karmeris 

(District) 

Permits have been 

issued, contracts are 

being finalized.  

Anthem Parkway 

Phase 5B (Will 

include 

roundabout at 

Pope John Paul) 

06/07/2022 3rd 

Quarter 

2023 

TBD Costs being 

reviewed 

0% Andrew Karmeris 

(District) 

Environmental permits 

expected June 2024 

Apron at Owens 

roundabout & vet 

handicap parking 

spot 

06/06/2023 May 

2023 

Design 

Plans 

11/30/23 

TBD 0% Ted Tryka 

 (District) 

Plan and permitting to 

be completed by the 

end of the year.  

Additional 

Landscaping on 

Milano 

07/11/2023 August 

2023 

Dec 

2023 

Costs being 

reviewed. 

0% David Genson 

(AMD) 

AMD is working on 

pricing.  

Page 13



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
Parking on 

District Roads 

09/13/2022 01/2023 2nd 

Quarter 

2023 

N/A N/A Andrew Karmeris 

(District Manager) 

Kim Twiss (Master 

Association 

Manager) 

Signs have been 

delivered and 

approximately 90% 

have been installed.  

Town Core 

Striping and 

Flashing Signs 

09/13/2022 01/2023 9/15/23 $188,000 98% Ted Tryka 

(District) 

2 Parking Spots 

Remain.  Construction 

Equipment signs have 

been ordered to block 

off spots.  

Asset 

Management 

11/01/2022 10/1/23 9/30/24 $75,000 FY24 – 0% Sal DeAngelo 

(District) 

Mapping of roadways, 

sidewalks, curbs, light 

poles are complete.  

Budgeting for Fiscal 

Year 2024 to include 

site visits, mapping of 

additional assets such 

as signs, fixtures, etc. 

Reserve Funds 

(Irrigation and 

O&M) 

11/01/2022 TBD N/A TBD TBD David Genson 

(AMD) 

Rate Adjustment 

presentation expected 

at Spring 2024 meeting. 

Front Fountain 04/04/2023 N/A Dec 2023 N/A N/A Donny Diaz The signage lights 

project is complete.  

The fountains are 

currently down and 

waiting on parts to 

Page 14



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
arrive. 

National Gate 

monitoring 

05/02/2023 2023 Ongoing N/A N/A Alyssa Willson 

(District) 

The District continues 

to monitor National 

Gate operation.  

Residents have been 

instructed to file 

complaints filed with 

District Manager.  

Sign at Oil Well 

Road/ Lighting 

Project 

10/03/2023 Spring 

2024 

End of 

2024 

$430,000 0% Ted Tryka 

(District 

Proposals to be 

requested from 

prequalified 

contractors.  

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Publication Date
2023-11-30

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT
NOTICE OF EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING
A special public meeting of the Evaluation Committee of the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District
(District) is scheduled to be held on December 13, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. at the Ave Maria Master Association
Building, 5080 Annunciation Circle, Suite 101, Ave Maria, Florida 34142, to evaluate pre-quali�cation packages
received in response to its request for quali�cations for construction and maintenance services. No o�cial
action will be taken at the meeting. The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance
with the provisions of Florida law including but not limited to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida.
A copy of the agenda for this meeting may be obtained from Special District Services, Inc., 2501A Burns Road,
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410, (561) 630-4922 (District Managers O�ce). The District Evaluation
Committee Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with provisions of Florida law.
The District Evaluation Committee Meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be speci�ed on the
record at the meeting. There may be occasions when one or more Committee Members will participate by
telephone or other telecommunication device.
Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment
should contact the District Managers O�ce at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. If you are
hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY)
/ 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Managers O�ce.
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at
a future Board meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and
evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.
Andrew Karmeris
District Manager
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT
www.avemariastewardshipcd.org
No. 9548193 Nov. 30, 2023

Page 18



Page 19



1 

RESOLUTION 2023-29 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE 
MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT ADOPTING THE 
PREQUALIFIED CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACTORS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (the “District”) is a local unit 
of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of 
Florida, as amended (the “Act”); and  

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to construct, install, acquire, operate and/or 
maintain systems and facilities for certain basic public infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, in November of 2023, the District issued a Request for Qualifications 
(“RFQ”) in order to prequalify contractors for future District infrastructure construction and 
maintenance projects, including construction of roadways, stormwater management facilities, 
irrigation facilities, earthwork, landscape, hardscape, street lighting, and other public 
improvements and maintenance services including exotic vegetation removal and lake and littoral 
maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, at the December 19, 2023, meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the 
District, the District considered the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation of adopted all 
applicants as prequalified infrastructure or maintenance contractors; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the RFQ, the prequalification decision of the Board 
of Supervisors was to be valid for a period of three (3) years, after which time the Board of 
Supervisors, at its own discretion, could extend the prequalification period for up to an additional 
two (2) years or begin the prequalification process again; and 

WHEREAS, the District further desires to extend the previous prequalified contractors’, 
adopted per Resolution 2021-07 on May 4, 2021, status to an additional three (3) years with up to 
an additional two (2) years extension; and  

WHEREAS, the District now desires to adopt prequalified construction and maintenance 
contractors in accordance with Section 1 below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby adopts the below list of prequalified contractors in the 
categories indicated. Such prequalification term will expire December 18, 2026. At such time the 
Board of Supervisors of the District may determine, at its sole discretion, whether to extend the 

Page 20



2 

term of the prequalified contractors for an additional two (2) years or begin the prequalification 
process again. 

Contractor: Category: 

SECTION 2. The District hereby extends the previous prequalified contractors adopted per 
Resolution 2021-07, dated May 4, 2021. Such prequalification term will expire December 18, 
2026. At such time the Board of Supervisors of the District may determine, at its sole discretion, 
whether to extend the term of the prequalified contractors for an additional two (2) years or begin 
the prequalification process again.  Pursuant to the District Rules of Procedure (the “Rules”), Rule 
3.7, it shall be in the District’s sole discretion to utilize the prequalified vendors for a particular 
category of service.  In the event District elects not to utilize prequalified vendors, procurement 
shall be made in accordance with the Rules and applicable Florida law. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023. 

ATTEST: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

_____________________________ ________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Thomas Peek,  Chairman 

Page 21



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-30 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT REGARDING THE AWARD OF A 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND EXECUTION OF 
APPLICABLE COST SHARES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (the “District”), is a local 
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, 
as amended, to plan, construct, install, acquire, finance, manage and operate public 
improvements and community facilities for lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has solicited bids from prequalified contractors interested in 
providing earthwork and paving, sanitary sewer, irrigation, and effluent construction services 
related to the Massa Way Irrigation Extension project (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has received and evaluated bids from two (2) prequalified 
contractor interested in providing those services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ____________________ submitted a responsive bid for earthwork and 
paving services  (the “Earthwork and Paving Contractor”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in the best interest of the District, the Board desires to award a contract to 
the Earthwork and Paving Contractor; and  
 
 

WHEREAS, ____________________ submitted a responsive bid for sanitary sewer, 
irrigation and effluent services  (the “Sanitary Sewer, Irrigation and Effluent Contractor”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in the best interest of the District, the Board desires to award contracts to 
the Earthwork and Paving Contractor and the Sanitary Sewer, Irrigation and Effluent Contractor. 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. All of the representations, findings and determinations contained within 
the recitals stated above are recognized as true and accurate and are expressly incorporated into 
this Resolution. 
 

Page 22



2 
 

SECTION 2. The bid submitted by the Earthwork and Paving Contractor and the 
Sanitary Sewer, Irrigation and Effluent Contractor are the bids which best serve the interests of 
the District. 
 
 SECTION 3. The Earthwork and Paving Contractor shall be awarded a contract for 
construction services relating to earthwork and paving portion of the Project. The Sanitary 
Sewer, Irrigation and Effluent Contractor shall be awarded a contract for construction services 
relating to the sanitary sewer, irrigation and effluent portion of the Project. 
 
 SECTION 4.  The Chairman and District Staff are hereby authorized to give notice of 
this award to all bidders to the extent required by law and to proceed with the execution of a 
contract with the selected proposer. Further, if applicable, the Chairman is authorized to execute 
a cost share agreement with Ave Maria Utility Company, LLLP or other respective entities  for 
non-District items of work related to the included in the Contractor’s bid and related to the 
Project. 
 
 SECTION 6. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023. 
 
 
ATTEST:      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Thomas Peek, Chairman 
 
 

Page 23



RESOLUTION 2023-31 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
ADOPTING A FLEET SAFETY AND DRIVING POLICY; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing 

pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose of 
providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and services to the 
lands within the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to adopt resolutions which may be necessary for 
the conduct of District business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the District has purchased vehicles for use by District 
Field Operations Management Services Staff for the purpose of conducting District business (the 
“Vehicles”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the hereby determines tit is in the best interests of the District, and necessary 
for the conduct of District business, to establish a policy governing the use of such vehicles, as set 
forth in Exhibit A.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The attached Fleet Safety and Driving Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A is 
hereby adopted pursuant to this Resolution.   All District Field Operations Management Services 
Staff must execute the notice included in Exhibit A and District Manager shall ensure an executed 
copy is maintained in the District’s records. 
 
 SECTION 2. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2023 
 
ATTEST:      AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
      DISTRICT 
  
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

Page 24



EXHIBIT “A” 
Fleet Safety and Driving Policy 

Special District Services/Ave Maria Stewardship Community District 

Purpose 
Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (“AMSCD”) has acquired vehicles (the “Vehicles”) for 
use by District Field Operations Management Services Staff (as such term is defined in the 
Agreement) pursuant to the Amended and Restated Agreement for Services Management dated July 
11, 2023 (the “Agreement”). The District is committed to reducing accidents and providing a safe 
environment for all users of the vehicles.  
The environment in which motor vehicle accidents occur involves numerous complex factors, many 
of which are uncontrollable. The purpose of AMSCD Fleet Safety and Driving Policy is to 
eliminate unnecessary injuries and fatal circumstances by reducing those factors that we can 
control.  
To further this goal, AMSCD developed a Fleet Safety and Driving Policy (the “Policy”) effective 
December 19, 2023. This Policy applies to all current and future District Field Operations 
Management Services Staff. 
Objective  

AMSCD purchases, maintains, and services the Vehicles for daily use by District Field Operations 
Management Services Staff. As such, this policy provides direction and sets forth District Field 
Operations Management Services Staff expectations in the operation and use of District Vehicles. 

Basic Vehicle Operation Guidelines 
District Field Operations Management Services Staff are expected to treat District Vehicles with an 
appropriate level of respect and care, demonstrating an attitude of loyalty and pride to the District. 
The following are basic Vehicle operation principles to which District Field Operations 
Management Services Staff are required to adhere: 

 Always wear a seat belt. 
 Drive defensively. Always anticipate what other drivers on the road might do wrong and 

plan your mode of escape. Never move through traffic aggressively. 
 Respect speed limits and traffic signs. Follow all traffic signals.  
 Use parking brakes as necessary to stabilize the vehicle from moving/rolling. 

Traffic Violations 
AMSCD is not responsible for any traffic violations or parking tickets acquired by violation of 
ordinance, state or federal laws regarding your driving habits and operation of your motor vehicle. 
Any ticket issued is the District Field Operations Management Services Staff responsibility, even if 
the ticket is issued while conducting business for AMSCD.  
 
 
 

Page 25



Distracted Driving 
AMSCD is committed to District Field Operations Management Services Staff safety, and for this 
reason firmly prohibits all behavior that distracts District Field Operations Management Services 
Staff while they are operating a district vehicle. General guidelines for behavior while driving are as 
follows: 

 Use of cell phones while driving is strictly prohibited: This includes all functions of the cell 
phone including, but not limited to, phone calls, text messaging/SMS, email, MMS, Internet 
use and camera use. 

 Use of electronic devices (including laptops, PDAs, cameras and pagers): While driving is 
strictly prohibited unless specifically outlined below. 

 Voicemail must handle all calls while driving, and calls may only be returned when stopped 
or pulled off the road. 

 Passengers making or taking calls for the driver is permissible provided the interaction does 
not affect the driver’s performance. 

 Regular callers must be informed that you will not be available while driving and should be 
notified of the best times to call based on the driving schedule. 

 District Field Operations Management Services Staff who receive calls from others who are 
driving are obligated to ask that the staff member call back at a more appropriate time. 

Headset/Hands-free Use 
AMSCD prohibits the use of hand-held mobile devices while driving. Using a hand-held mobile 
device means using at least one hand to hold the mobile device, dialing a mobile device by pressing 
more than a single button or reaching for a mobile device in a manner that requires the driver to 
maneuver so they are no longer in a seated driving position, restrained by a seat belt. However, the 
use of headsets or hands-free devices while driving is permissible if: 

 The device is preapproved by the District for use. 
 Use of the device does not cause distraction (for example, fiddling with the device or taking 

eyes off the road to get it to function properly). 
 Any dialing or use of the handset requires a single button. 
 Any dialing or use of the handset is handled while stopped or pulled to the side of the road. 
 Conversations do not interfere with the driver’s ability to drive safely. 
 Road conditions are generally good and do not threaten the driver’s safety. 

Emergency Calls 
The only exception to the cell phone use guideline is calls placed to 911. If placing or accepting an 
emergency call, it should be kept short with a hands-free option if available. The vehicle should be 
pulled over if possible. 

GPS Systems 
AMSCD understands that sometimes, especially when traveling in unfamiliar areas, drivers require 
assistance with directions. GPS systems are extremely helpful devices, but they can also be 
distracting if used improperly. Field Operations Management Services Staff must adhere to the 
following:  

Page 26



 Mounted GPS systems may not block or obstruct the driver’s view in any way. 
 GPS systems must be voice narrated and must not require that the driver look away from the 

road to follow instructions. 
 Field Operations Management Services Staff may not program the system while in motion. 
 Programming or otherwise engaging with the GPS screen may only occur while stopped or 

while pulled off the road. 
 

Audio Devices 
In some cases, worrying about music selection or touching dials and buttons on the radio or audio 
device may be just as dangerous as cell phone use. It takes eyes and concentration off the road, 
which is not permissible under AMSCD policy. AMSCD allows District Field Operations 
Management Services Staff use of personal, portable audio devices, because we do not want to 
eliminate Field Operations Management Services Staff ‘s ability to enjoy music while behind the 
wheel. However, District Field Operations Management Services Staff must follow these 
guidelines: 

 District Field Operations Management Services Staff may not take eyes off the road to 
adjust music settings. 

 Programming music settings while stopped, pulled off the road or before departing is 
permissible behavior. 

 District Field Operations Management Services Staff may not under any circumstances use 
MP3 players or other handheld electronic audio devices with headphones. Not only is it 
illegal in most states, but it also impedes the driver’s ability to properly hear warning signs, 
signals or sirens. 

Preventive Maintenance 
To maintain the safety and integrity of the vehicle, AMSCD will provide the necessary resources to 
ensure all vehicles are operating properly. All routine motor vehicle maintenance will be done 
according to the manufacturer’s specifications. Critical components that must always be controlled, 
maintained and promptly repaired are brakes, tires, suspension, steering, lights, mirrors, windows 
and windshield wipers. AMSCD vehicles shall remain in a clean and functioning state ready for use.    

Accident Investigation Procedures 
AMSCD realizes some accidents are unpreventable. Drivers should seek medical attention 
immediately, if necessary, Supervisors and drivers will be trained in post-accident procedures to 
secure the details of the accident and document the damage. Providing detailed facts of the accident 
will help our insurance carrier deter fraudulent actions.  
Drivers are required to document all details of the accident: traffic flow, speed limits, stop 
lights/signs, weather conditions, citations issued and all other relevant information. Pictures should 
be taken to document the extent of damage to all vehicles involved. 
Once this information is secured, the driver is to report all accidents immediately to their supervisor. 
If the vehicle is inoperable, arrangements need to be made for towing and delivery of cargo.   

District Vehicles for Personal Use 
Personal use of District Vehicles is prohibited. Use of the District Vehicle is limited to travel to and 

Page 27



District-related events. Any errand or travel that is not directly District related is considered 
personal travel. The Vehicle is not to be used for personal or entertainment purposes.  
 

Prohibited Behavior 
Use of District Vehicles is a privilege. Behaviors that result in termination, suspension, and/or 
permanent loss of driving privileges include but are not limited to the following: 
 

 Driving while under the influence of drugs or alcohol 
 Negligent homicide 
 Operating a Vehicle with a suspended license 
 Using a motor vehicle for commission of a felony 
 Aggravated assault with a motor vehicle 
 Reckless driving 
 Hit and run 
 Three convictions for moving violations  
 Use of a district vehicle without authorization 
 Three or more major traffic violations 
 More than two preventable accidents involving personal injury or property damage in any 

three-year period 

Specialty Vehicles 
Golf carts and other specialty vehicles in use on AMSCD property to move people and materials 
around the facility require specific precautions: 

 Vehicles must travel at an acceptable speed, slowing down in wet or slippery conditions. 
 Vehicles must yield to pedestrians. 
 Vehicles must keep to designated paths and roadways, staying off major streets. Carts may 

not block traffic paths where parked.  
 Vehicles may not carry more passengers than the cart is designed to accommodate. If the 

vehicle is equipped with seat belts, they must be used. 
 All passengers must keep their hands, feet and other body parts inside the vehicle. 
 The driver must be aware of the surroundings, paying attention to driving signs and 

warnings, even if they are directed at autos and listening for warnings like emergency 
vehicle sirens, children playing or other vehicles. 

District Fuel Use and Associated Charges 
Fuel costs for AMSCD vehicles shall be expensed through the approved/ratified annual budget 

under the appropriate Operations and Maintenance Expenditure line item.  
 
 

Page 28



 
 
 

Fleet Safety and Driving Policy 

Notice to District Field Operations Management Services Staff  

 
 
The environment in which motor vehicle accidents occur involves numerous complex factors, many 
of which are uncontrollable. The purpose of AMSCD Fleet Safety Policy is to eliminate 
unnecessary injuries and fatal circumstances by reducing those factors that we can control.  
All District Field Operations Management Services Staff are expected and required to actively 
participate in this policy for their own health and well-being. AMSCD encourages its District Field 
Operations Management Services Staff to take a proactive approach in identifying potential hazards 
by promptly reporting them to their supervisor. The use of seat belts and other safety devices is 
mandatory. 
Driving under the influence of alcohol or other illegal substances is prohibited.  
We encourage all District Field Operations Management Services Staff to report all maintenance 
and malfunction issues immediately to the Operations Manager or Director of Operations. AMSCD 
realizes a proper working vehicle is the first step to ensuring everyone’s safety.   
Regarding vehicle accidents, drivers are required to document all details of the accident: traffic 
flow, speed limits, stop lights/signs, weather conditions, citations issued and other relevant 
information. Pictures should be taken to document the extent of damage to all vehicles involved. 
Report all accidents immediately to the Operations Manager or Director of Operations. 
Personal use of District Vehicles is prohibited. 
 
I have read and understand AMSCD Fleet Safety and Driving Policy, and its requirements and 
expectations of me.   
 
 
 

Staff signature       Date 
 

 

Specific Authority: Ch. 2004-461, Laws of Florida 
Effective date: December 19, 2023 
 

Page 29



RESOLUTION 2023-32 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT REGARDING THE AWARD OF A 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND EXECUTION OF 
APPLICABLE COST SHARES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (the “District”), is a local 
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida 
to plan, construct, install, acquire, finance, manage and operate public improvements and 
community facilities for lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has solicited bids from prequalified contractors interested in 
providing construction services related to the Ave Maria Blvd. and Oil Well Road Lighting 
project (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has received and evaluated bids from one (1) prequalified 
contractor interested in providing those services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Quality Enterprises, Inc. submitted a responsive bid (the “Contractor”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in the best interest of the District, the Board desires to award a contract to 
the Contractor. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. All of the representations, findings and determinations contained within 
the recitals stated above are recognized as true and accurate and are expressly incorporated into 
this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2. The bid submitted by the Contractor is the bid which best serves the 
interests of the District. 
 
 SECTION 3. The Contractor shall be awarded a contract for construction services for 
the Project. 
 
 SECTION 4.  The Chairman and District Staff are hereby authorized to give notice of 
this award to all bidders to the extent required by law and to proceed with the execution of a 
contract with the selected proposer. Further the Chairman is authorized to execute a cost share 
agreement with any  respective entities  for non-District items of work related to the included in 
the Contractor’s bid and related to the Project. 

Page 30



 
 SECTION 6. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023. 
 
 
ATTEST:      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Thomas Peek, Chairman 
 
 

Page 31



Page 32



Page 1 of 5 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-33 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AUTHORIZING THE DISBURSEMENT 
OF FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE 
DISTRICT’S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (“BOARD”); SETTING 
CERTAIN MONETARY THRESHOLDS; ESTABLISHING CONDITIONS 
PRECEDENT TO THE DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government created and 
existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose 
of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and services to 
the lands within the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to adopt resolutions which may be necessary 
for the conduct of District business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Rule 1.1(2)(f) of the District’s Rules of Procedure contemplates that the 
Board may delegate authority to others to contract or make expenditures on behalf of the 
District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby determines that for purposes of administrative and 
accounting necessity, it is in the best interests of the District, and necessary for the conduct of 
District business, to establish a policy governing the disbursement of funds with prior approval 
by the District Manager, Operations Director, Chairperson and/or Vice Chairperson, as set forth 
below.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1. Payment of Expenses. 

 
A. Continuing Expenses. The Board hereby authorizes the payment of 

invoices of continuing expenses, which meet the following requirements: 
 

1. The invoices must be due on or before the next scheduled 
meeting of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
2. The invoice must be pursuant to a contract or agreement 
authorized by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
3. The total amount paid under such contract or agreement, 
including the current invoice, must be equal to or less than the 
amount specified in the contract or agreement. 

Page 33



Page 2 of 5 

B. Non-Continuing Expenses. The Board hereby authorizes the
disbursement of funds for payment of invoices of non-continuing expenses
which are 1) required or appropriate for the District to maintain orderly,
efficient and effective operations, maintenance and replacement of the
District’s facilities and infrastructure, 2) required to provide for the health,
safety, and welfare of the residents within the District; or 3) required to
repair, control, or maintain a District facility or asset beyond the normal,
usual, or customary maintenance required for such facility or assets,
pursuant to the following schedule:

1. Non-Continuing Expenses Not Exceeding $12,000 with
approval of the District Manager or Operations Director; and

2. Non-Continuing Expenses Not Exceeding $20,000 with
approval of the District Manager and Operations Director; and

Non-Continuing Expenses exceeding $20,000 shall be approved by the 
Board unless they are an Emergency Expense authorized under Section 
1.C.

Before any expenditure is made under Section 1.B., the  District Manager 
and/or the Operations Director shall confirm that there are available funds 
in the budget to pay the expense, either in the line item most germane to 
the expense or in another budget line item that has the capacity to be used 
for the expense. 

C. Emergency Expenses. For emergency expenses exceeding the
authorization in Section 1.B. above, and in the event that an emergency
meeting of the Board cannot timely be convened pursuant to the District’s
Rule 1.3(6) and Florida law, the Board hereby authorizes the disbursement
of funds in an amount not to exceed $50,000 to address any emergency
condition affecting the District, but only with the prior written approval of
the Chairperson, or in his or her absence, the Vice Chairperson of the
District. For purposes of this Resolution, the term “emergency expense”
means a purchase or payment necessitated by a sudden unexpected turn of
events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods, hurricanes, accidents,
or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of the Board in the
normal conduct of its business), where the delay of waiting for a board
meeting would be detrimental to the interests of the District. This includes,
but is not limited to, instances where delay will jeopardize the funding for
the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, will likely
cause damage to property, will prejudice the District’s interest in a project
already in progress, or will create an undue hardship on the public health,
safety, or welfare.

Page 34



Page 3 of 5 

Section 2. Conditions Precedent to Payment of Expenses. 

1. For Non-Continuing Expenses greater than $5,000, the Operations Director
shall obtain a minimum of two bids for the work. For Non-Continuing
Expenses greater than $20,000, the Operations Director and/or District
Manager shall obtain three bids for the work. If the Operations Director and/or
District Manager is unable to obtain the required number of bids, the
Operations Director and/or District Manager shall notify the Chairperson of
the Board of the efforts undertaken to obtain multiple bids or the rationale
behind a sole source bid.

2. If a purchasing card is utilized for such purchase, the District Chair and
Operations Director, or its designee authorized to utilize such card, shall
execute and abide by the District’s Agreement Regarding Use of District-
Issued Debit Card, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 3. Board Consideration. Any payment made pursuant to the Resolution shall be 
submitted to the Board at the next scheduled meeting for approval and ratification. Copies of any 
disbursements made under the authority of this Resolution shall be included in the agenda 
package for the scheduled meeting or otherwise distributed to the Board at the meeting. 

Section 4. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

Section 5. Effective Date; Conflicts. This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage 
and adoption by the Board, and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed. All District 
resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent of such 
conflict, superseded and repealed.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2023. 

ATTEST: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE 
MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT 

______________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Thomas Peek, Chairperson 

Exhibit A: Agreement Regarding Use of District-Issued Debit Card 

Page 35



Page 4 of 5 

Exhibit A 

Agreement Regarding Use of District Issued Debit Card 

AGREEMENT REGARDING USE OF DISTRICT-ISSUED DEBIT CARD 

As the    for the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (“District”), I, 
__________________________, as District Manager/Operations Director, understand that I am 
authorized to use the District-issued Debit Card (the “Debit Card”) to make purchases as set 
forth in Resolution 2024-__ adopted by the District on December 19, 2023 (the “Resolution”). In 
this respect, I will adhere to the following: 

1. Compliance with Resolution, Rules & Policies. I agree to abide by all of the
terms of the Resolution, as may be amended from time to time. I further agree to abide by the 
policies of the bank from which the Debit Card is issued. I understand all such terms, rules, and 
policies. 

2. Authorized Expenditures Only. I agree to use the Debit Card for approved
District expenditures only, as set forth in the Resolution, and not personal expenses. I further 
agree not to use the Debit Card to obtain cash advances of any kind, whether from banks, credit 
unions, automatic tellers, or other means. I understand that in all cases of misuse, the District 
reserves the right to recover any monies and other damages from me. 

3. Procurement Procedures by District Manager/Operations Director. District
Manager/Operations Director shall have the authority to make payment directly to vendors for 
emergency or non-recurring purchases using the Debit Card as described in this section. All of 
District Manager/Operations Director’s expenditures shall be in accordance with the District’s 
Rules of Procedure and Florida law. The District shall provide to District Manager/Operations 
Director one Debit Card with a limit of _______________ Dollars ($_______) for the District 
Manager/Operations Director. The District Manager/Operations Director shall be the only 
individual authorized to use the Debit Card. To the extent feasible, the District 
Manager/Operations Director shall take all necessary steps to ensure that any Debit Card 
purchases are made on a tax-exempt basis. The District shall not replenish the Debit Card until 
provided with a full accounting, including copies of any receipts, for any monies the District 
Manager/Operations Director spent. Any purchases pursuant to this section that would require 
spending in excess of the applicable line-item amounts set forth in the annual operations and 
maintenance budget adopted by the District’s Board and as may be amended from time to time 
(“O&M Budget”) shall require prior approval from the Board. The District Manager/Operations 
Director shall be responsible for reimbursing the District for any Debit Card purchases that are 
not supported by appropriate receipts, or other proof of payment mutually agreed upon by the 
Parties, or that are not approved as part of the O&M Budget or by the Board (“Reimbursement 
Amount”) as well as any fees or penalties incurred as a result of such purchases. The District 
Manager/Operations Director shall pay the District an additional fee in the amount of ten (10) 
percent of the Reimbursement Amount in the event District Manager/Operations Director fails to 
reimburse the District within fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice from the District of 
unsupported Debit Card charges. 

Page 36



Page 5 of 5 

4. Security.  I agree to maintain the security of the Debit Card at all times in order to
prevent the Debit Card from being used for fraudulent or corrupt purposes, and to account for all 
Debit Card expenditures with appropriate receipts. 

5. Accounting. I understand that the Debit Card will be funded only up to
_______________ Dollars ($______) at any given time, and in order for the account to be 
replenished I must submit appropriate receipts to the District pursuant to the terms of the 
Resolution. I understand that unaccounted for or unapproved Debit Card expenditures are my 
responsibility, and that I may be liable for them at the discretion of the District. I will notify the 
District immediately upon discovering the Debit Card has been lost, misused, or stolen. 

6. Conclusion of Employment. Upon the conclusion of my employment, I agree to
submit the Debit Card to the District and all receipts within twenty-four (24) hours of my last 
day of work. 

Signature: ______________________________  Title:  Date: ____________ 

Signature: _______________________________  Title: District Chair  Date: ____________ 

Page 37



Upon recording, this instrument should be returned 
to: 

Kutak Rock LLP 
107 West College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
[AVE MARIA BOULEVARD] 

THIS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is made this _____ day of _______________, 2023 by AVE MARIA 
STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose government 
established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, whose address is 2501A Burns Road, 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (“District”), and AVE MARIA UNIVERSITY, INC. a 
Florida not-for-profit corporation, whose address for purposes hereof is 5050 Ave Maria 
Boulevard, Ave Maria, Florida 34142 (“University,” and together with District, the “Parties,” 
and each a “Party”). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  

WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, 
(“Act”), and is validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to finance, fund, plan, establish, acquire, 
construct or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, equip, operate, and maintain certain systems, 
facilities, and basic infrastructure and other infrastructure improvements within or without the 
boundaries of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District presently owns the land described in Exhibit A (“Easement 
Area”); and 

WHEREAS, the University desires to construct median and related landscape and 
irrigation improvements (the “Improvements”) within the Easement Area as further depicted in 
the attached Exhibit B (“Work”); and  

WHEREAS, given that the District has no objections, the University desires to undertake 
the Work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00) 
and other good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants of the Parties, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated as a material part of this Agreement. 

Page 38



2. Construction Easement. The District hereby grants to University an easement
over, upon, under, through, and across the Easement Area for ingress and egress for the Work 
(“Easement”). University shall use all due care to protect the Easement Area and adjoining 
property from damage resulting from University’s use of the Easement Area. The University 
agrees to pay the cost associated with and cooperate fully in the transfer of any permits to the 
District for any improvements conveyed pursuant to this Easement. University shall remain 
responsible for completion of all required permits, certifications or other approvals necessary to 
convey the improvements to the District, and upon completion of the Work and approval by the 
District Engineer shall convey the Improvements to the District via bill of sale for District’s 
operation and maintenance.  

3. Damage. In the event that University, its respective employees, agents, assignees,
contractors (or their subcontractors, employees or materialmen), or representatives cause damage 
to the Easement Area or to adjacent property or improvements in the exercise of the easement 
rights granted herein, University, at University’s sole cost and expense, agrees to promptly 
commence and diligently pursue the restoration of the same and the improvements so damaged 
to, as nearly as practical, the original condition. 

4. Insurance and Indemnity. University and/or any contractors performing work
for University on the Easement Area, shall at all times maintain general public liability insurance 
to afford protection against any and all claims for personal injury, death or property damage 
arising directly or indirectly out of the exercise of the rights and privileges granted. Said 
insurance maintained by any contractors performing work for University on the Easement Area 
shall be issued by solvent, reputable insurance companies authorized to do business in the State 
of Florida, naming University and District as insureds, as their interests may appear, in a 
combined-single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 with respect to bodily injury or death and 
property damage. Said insurance shall also be primary, and not contributory, as to any insurance 
coverage maintained by District. University hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
District from and against any and all liability arising out of University’s activities within the 
Easement Area. University agrees that nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute or be 
construed as a waiver of District’s limitations on liability as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or other applicable law. 

5. Liens. University shall not permit (and shall promptly satisfy or bond) any
construction, mechanic’s lien or encumbrance against the Easement Area in connection with the 
exercise of rights hereunder. If any contract for Work within the Easement Area total exceeds 
$200,000.00, University shall require contractor post a payment and performance bond in 
accordance with the requirements of s. 255.05, Florida Statutes. 

6. Default. A default by the District or University under this Agreement shall entitle
the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, 
the right of actual damages, injunctive relief, and specific performance. 

7. Enforcement of Agreement. In the event that the District or University seeks to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be 

Page 39



entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for 
trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

8. Notices. Any notice, demand, consent, authorization, request, approval, or other
communication that any Party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other Party 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing and delivered 
personally to the other Parties or sent by express 24-hour guaranteed courier or delivery service 
or by certified mail of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid and return receipt 
requested, addressed to the other Party at the addresses first listed above (or to such other place 
as any Party may by notice to the others specify). Notice shall be deemed given when received, 
except that if delivery is not accepted, notice shall be deemed given on the date of such non-
acceptance. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, 
shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any time for giving notice would otherwise 
expire on a non-business day, the notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business 
day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall 
not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel(s) for University may 
deliver Notice on behalf of the District and University, respectively. 

9. Third Parties. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the District and
University, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of 
any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, corporation, or entity other 
than the District and University any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement 
or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement. The District shall be solely responsible 
for enforcing its rights under this Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s right to protect its rights from 
interference by a third party. 

10. Assignment. Neither of the Parties hereto may assign, transfer, or license all or
any portion of its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 
Party. Any purported assignment, transfer, or license by one of the Parties absent the written 
consent of the other Party shall be void and unenforceable. 

11. Controlling Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted,
and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. The Parties agree and consent to 
venue in Collier County, Florida, for the resolution of any dispute, whether brought in or out of 
court, arising out of this Agreement. 

12. Public Records. All documents of any kind provided in connection with this
Agreement are public records and are treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 

13. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions or
part of a provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

Page 40



14. Binding Effect. This Agreement and all of the provisions, representations,
covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, transferees, and/or licensees. 

15. Authorization. By execution below, the undersigned represent that they have
been duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute this 
Agreement, that the respective Parties have complied with all the requirements of law, and they 
have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 

16. Amendments. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the District 
and University. 

17. Entire Agreement. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of the agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

18. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date first written
above. The Easement shall automatically terminate as it relates to any portion of the Easement 
Area upon the conclusion of the Work and acceptance of the Improvements by the District. 

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which
shall constitute an original, but all taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

Page 41



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, District and University caused this Agreement to be 
executed, to be effective as of the day and year first written above. 

WITNESSES:  

Signed, sealed and delivered AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
in the presence of: COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

By: 
Print Name:       Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Print Name: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ________________ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
_______________, 2023, by means of  physical presence or  online notarization the 
Chairperson/Vice Chairperson of the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District, on behalf of 
District. He/She is personally known to me or has produced 
________________________________________ as identification. 

Print Name: 
Notary Public, State of Florida 
Commission No.: 
My Commission Expires: 

{Notary Seal} 

Page 42



Signed, sealed and delivered AVE MARIA UNIVERSITY, INC. 
in the presence of:     

By: 
Print Name: Name: 

Title: 

Print Name: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF _________________ 

The foregoing was sworn to and subscribed before me this _____ day of 
_______________, 2023, by means of  physical presence or  online notarization 
_________________________, as _________________________ of Ave Maria University, Inc. 
He/She is personally known to me or has produced 
________________________________________ as identification. 

Print Name: 
Notary Public, State of Florida 
Commission No.: 
My Commission Expires: 

{Notary Seal} 

Page 43



Exhibit A 

Legal Description 

Tract R, of Ave Maria Phase One, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46, pages 16 
through 29 of the Public Records of Collier County, Florida. 

Page 44



Exhibit B 

Depiction of Work area 

Page 45



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO COST SHARE AGREEMENT BETWEEN AVE MARIA 
STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT AND AVE MARIA UTILITY COMPANY, 

LLLP, FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 
 
 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“First Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this _____ 
day of _______________ 2023, by and between: 

 
Ave Maria Stewardship Community District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, being 
situated in Collier County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 2501A Burns 
Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (the “District”); and 
 
Ave Maria Utility Company, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited 
partnership, whose address is 2600 Golden Gate Parkway, Naples, Florida 34105 
(“AMUC” together with the District, the “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the District and AMUC previously entered into that Cost Share Agreement 
for Consulting Services, dated March 7, 2023 (“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 3 and 8 of the Agreement, the Parties desire to amend 
the Agreement adding the additional services as set forth in more detail below and as further 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto (“Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of the Parties hereto has the authority to execute this First Amendment 
and to perform its obligations and duties hereunder, and each party has satisfied all conditions 
precedent to the execution of this First Amendment so that this First Amendment constitutes a 
legal and binding obligation of each party hereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 
covenants of the Parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the District and AMUC agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. The Agreement is hereby affirmed and continues to constitute a valid and 
binding agreement between the Parties. Except as described in Sections 2 and 3 of this First 
Amendment, nothing herein shall modify the rights and obligations of the Parties under the 
Agreement. All of the remaining provisions, including, but not limited to, the engagement of 
services, indemnification, and sovereign immunity provisions, remain in full effect and fully 
enforceable.  
 

SECTION 2. The Agreement is hereby amended to reflect the addition of the Services 
as further described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 
SECTION 3. As compensation for the Services described in Exhibit A, the District 

agrees to pay AMUC a total of eighty percent (80%) of the total cost.  

Page 46



2 
 

 
SECTION 4. Except as specifically amended above, the Agreement shall remain in full 

force and effect, unaltered by this First Amendment. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this First Amendment to be effective the day 

and year first written above. 
 
Attest:      Ave Maria Stewardship Community District 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
____________________________  Print Name: _______________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 
 
Attest:      Ave Maria Utility Company, LLLP 

a Florida limited liability limited partnership 
      
 
_____________________________  By: ______________________________________ 
Witness      
      Print Name: _______________________________ 
_____________________________ 
Print Name     Title: _____________________________________ 
       
 
 
Exhibit A:  Scope of Additional Services 

Page 47



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Scope of Additional Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
 

 
 

 

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Type text hereTyTTTTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTyTTyTyyTyTyTyTyTyTTTypepepepepepepepepepepepepepepepepeeepepepepepepepeepepepepeppp ttttttttttttttttte

Tammy Smith

Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



 Ave Maria Stewardship Community District
 Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023

Oct 23 23/24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Expenditures

01-1130 · Payroll Tax Expense 61.20 734.00 -672.80 8.34%

01-1131 · Supervisor Fees 800.00 9,600.00 -8,800.00 8.33%

01-1310 · Engineering 5,880.00 85,000.00 -79,120.00 6.92%

01-1311 · Management Fees 9,000.00 108,000.00 -99,000.00 8.33%

01-1313 · Website Management 250.00 2,500.00 -2,250.00 10.0%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 10,398.28 80,000.00 -69,601.72 13.0%

01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 20,300.00 -20,300.00 0.0%

01-1330 · Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0.00 3,900.00 -3,900.00 0.0%

01-1441 · Travel & Lodging 2,136.09 5,000.00 -2,863.91 42.72%

01-1450 · Insurance 88,418.00 45,000.00 43,418.00 196.48%

01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 2,834.16 8,000.00 -5,165.84 35.43%

01-1512 · Miscellaneous 414.07 6,000.00 -5,585.93 6.9%

01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 32.47 2,000.00 -1,967.53 1.62%

01-1514 · Office Supplies 684.25 3,500.00 -2,815.75 19.55%

01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 500.00 -325.00 35.0%

01-1541 · Misc Filing, Notices, etc. 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

01-1733 · Trustee Fees 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

01-1734 · Continuing Disclosure Fee 0.00 12,000.00 -12,000.00 0.0%

01-1735 · Assessment Roll 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

01-1801 · Landscaping - Miscellaneous 3,920.00 31,500.00 -27,580.00 12.44%

01-1808 · Irrigation Repair 16,047.20 110,000.00 -93,952.80 14.59%

01-1813 · Storm Cleanup - Electric 0.00 26,250.00 -26,250.00 0.0%

01-1814 · Storm Cleanup 0.00 60,000.00 -60,000.00 0.0%

01-1815 · Miscellaneous Maintenance 1,188.00 50,000.00 -48,812.00 2.38%

01-1816 · Electric-Streetlights,Landscape 6,641.24 89,250.00 -82,608.76 7.44%

01-1817 · Maintenance Street Sweeping 0.00 1,050.00 -1,050.00 0.0%

01-1818 · Striping & Traffic Markings 0.00 150,000.00 -150,000.00 0.0%

01-1819 · Street Light Maintenance 13,131.94 120,000.00 -106,868.06 10.94%

01-1820 · Maint Sidewalk/Curb Repairs 0.00 157,500.00 -157,500.00 0.0%

01-1830 · Maintenance Contracts 70,392.59 715,000.00 -644,607.41 9.85%

Page 70



 Ave Maria Stewardship Community District
 Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023

Oct 23 23/24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

01-1831 · Tree Trimming 0.00 153,300.00 -153,300.00 0.0%

01-1832 · Storm Cleanup - Landscaping 0.00 26,250.00 -26,250.00 0.0%

01-1833 · Plant Replacement 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

01-1834 · Mulch 0.00 147,000.00 -147,000.00 0.0%

01-1838 · Water Management & Drain 0.00 4,200.00 -4,200.00 0.0%

01-1839 · Entry Feature/Near Well Water 562.26 4,725.00 -4,162.74 11.9%

01-1841 · Maintenance Irrigation Water 6,711.61 89,250.00 -82,538.39 7.52%

01-1842 · Maint Fountain/Repair 23,330.66 50,000.00 -26,669.34 46.66%

01-1843 · Maintenance Rodent Control 570.00 8,400.00 -7,830.00 6.79%

01-1844 · Maint Equipment Repair 0.00 8,400.00 -8,400.00 0.0%

01-1845 · Maint Signage Repair 0.00 15,750.00 -15,750.00 0.0%

01-1846 · Maint Storm Drain Cleaning 0.00 52,500.00 -52,500.00 0.0%

01-1847 · Mnt Drainage/Lke Mnt/Littorals 4,809.00 78,750.00 -73,941.00 6.11%

01-1848 · Maintenance Aerators 0.00 2,100.00 -2,100.00 0.0%

01-1850 · Maint-Preserve Maintenance 21,350.00 63,000.00 -41,650.00 33.89%

01-1853 · Maintenance Small Tools 2,860.55 3,675.00 -814.45 77.84%

01-1854 · Maint Miscellaneous Repairs 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%

01-1855 · Maint Vehicle Lease/Fuel/Repair 0.00 21,000.00 -21,000.00 0.0%

01-1856 · Maint Mosquito Control 165,510.41 525,000.00 -359,489.59 31.53%

01-1858 · Maint Temp EMS/Fire Facility 0.00 9,650.00 -9,650.00 0.0%

01-1863 · Maint Base Management Fee 1,812.23 23,000.00 -21,187.77 7.88%

01-1864 · Maintenance Admin Payroll 2,901.17 0.00 2,901.17 100.0%

01-1867 · Asset Manager 0.00 75,000.00 -75,000.00 0.0%

01-1869 · Field Operations 44,266.70 600,000.00 -555,733.30 7.38%

01-1872 · Pressure Washing 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

01-1890 · Maint-Reserve Fund 0.00 27,500.00 -27,500.00 0.0%

01-1891 · Maint Contingency 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%

Total Expenditures 507,089.08 4,141,534.00 -3,634,444.92 12.24%

Page 71


	Ave Maria Stewardship Community District - December 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Approval of Minutes
	November 7, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	December 13, 2023 Evaluation Committee Meeting

	AMSCD Projects Update
	Consider Approval of Updated Agreement between the District & Collier Mosquito Control District 

	Presentation of Evaluation Committee’s Recommendation on Prequalified Contractor Applicants
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-29 – Adopting Prequalified Contractors List
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-30 – Awarding Contract for Earthwork & Paving, Sanitary 
Sewer, Irrigation for Massa Way Irrigation Extension
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-31 – Adopting a Vehicle Use Policy
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-32 – Awarding Construction Contract for Ave Maria Blvd.
and Oil Well Road Lighting)

	Consider Resolution No. 2023-33 – Approving the Use of District Issued Debit Card
	Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Easement Agreement
	Consider Approval of First Amendment to Cost Share Agreement between the District and
Ave Maria Utility Company LLLP for Consulting Services

	Financials




